IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

Chief Deputy Clerk

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Petitioner,

v.

CASE NO: 5th DCA No.: 93-2404

4

758

By_

JOSEPH SANTORO,

Respondent.

ON DISCRETIONARY REVIEW FROM THE FIFTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL

PETITIONER'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL ROBIN COMPTON JONES ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL Fla. Bar #846864 444 Seabreeze Boulevard Fifth Floor Daytona Beach, FL 32118 (904) 238-4990

COUNSEL FOR PETITIONER

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Respondent pled guilty to Burglary of a Structure. He signed a plea form that stated that a hearing may be set to determine if he qualified as an habitual offender and that he understood that he could be subject to a maximum sentence of 10 years imprisonment with no eligibility for basic gain time if found by the judge to be a habitual offender. He affirmatively indicated at his plea hearing that he read the written agreement before he signed it, that he had an adequate opportunity to ask questions of his attorney about the agreement, and that he understood the agreement. Respondent was sentenced as an habitual offender to two years community control followed by six months probation. The Fifth District Court of Appeal reversed and remanded relying on Thompson v. State, 638 So. 2d 116 (Fla. 5th DCA 1994) and Ashley v. State, 614 So. 2d 486 (Fla. 1993). Santoro v. State, 19 Fla. L. Weekly D2302 (October 28, 1994). The State then filed a Notice то Invoke Discretionary Jurisdiction of this Court based on express and direct conflict with a decision of this Court.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The opinion issued in the instant case by the Fifth District Court of Appeal cites <u>Thompson</u>, <u>infra</u>, as controlling authority which is currently pending jurisdiction in this Court. This constitutes prima facie express conflict, if accepted, thereby allowing this Court to exercise its jurisdiction.

As additional grounds for jurisdiction, the decision by the Fifth District Court of Appeal in this case is in express and direct conflict with this Court's decision in <u>Massey</u>, <u>infra</u>. Due to this conflict, this Court should exercise its discretionary jurisdiction.

ARGUMENT

THE DECISION IN THIS CASE IS IN EXPRESS AND DIRECT CONFLICT WITH A DECISION FROM THIS COURT.

A district court of appeal per curiam opinion which cites as controlling authority a decision that is either pending review in or has been reversed by the Supreme Court continues to constitute prima facie express conflict and allows the Supreme Court to exercise its jurisdiction. <u>Jollie v. State</u>, 405 So. 2d 418 (Fla. 1981). The opinion issued in the instant case by the Fifth District Court of Appeal cites <u>Thompson v. State</u>, <u>supra</u>, as controlling authority. (Appendix) <u>Thompson</u> is currently pending jurisdiction in this Court, Florida Supreme Court Case Number 83,951, therefore, if accepted, this Court must exercise its jurisdiction in the instant case.

As additional grounds for jurisdiction, Petitioner asserts that the decision in the instant case is in express and direct conflict with this Court's decision in <u>Massey v. State</u>, 609 So. 2d 598 (Fla. 1992). In <u>Massey</u>, this Court held that the State's failure to strictly comply with the statute requiring that notice of the state's intention to have the defendant sentenced as an habitual offender be served upon the defendant, may be reviewed under the harmless error analysis. In that case, the State's error in failing to serve actual notice to the defendant was harmless where the defendant and his attorney had actual notice of the State's intention.

In the instant case, the Fifth District Court of Appeal reversed Respondent's sentence relying on <u>Thompson</u>, <u>supra</u>. The

- 3 -

instant decision is in express and direct conflict with <u>Massey</u>, <u>supra</u>, because the Fifth District failed to apply a harmless error analysis. As in <u>Massey</u>, the Respondent had **actual** notice of the possible consideration of habitual offender sanctions.

At the time of entering his plea, Respondent signed a plea agreement which provided for the maximum sentence should he be determined by the Judge to be an habitual offender as well as the consequences of such a sentence. Respondent affirmatively indicated at his plea hearing that he read the agreement, had an adequate opportunity to ask questions of his attorney about the agreement, and that he understood the agreement. Because Respondent had actual notice of the possibility of a habitual offender sentence before he entered his plea, the protections afforded by Ashley v. State, supra, were provided to him, and any error in failing to provide formal written notice of habitualization was harmless. The Fifth District erred in failing to apply a harmless error analysis as outlined in Massey, infra.

The Fifth District's decision in the instant case is in express and direct conflict with this Court's decision in <u>Massey</u>, <u>infra</u>. This honorable court should exercise its jurisdiction in this case and resolve the conflict between the two cases.

- 4 -

CONCLUSION

Based on the arguments and authorities presented herein, Petitioner respectfully requests this honorable court exercise its jurisdiction in this case.