FILED

SID J. WHITE

DEC 7 1994

CLERK, SUPREME COURT
By
Chief Deputy Clerk

Petitioner,

Vs.

CASE NO.
DCA Case No. \$3-2404

Respondent.

APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT IN AND FOR VOLUSIA COUNTY STATE OF FLORIDA

JURISDICTIONAL BRIEF OF RESPONDENT

JAMES B. GIBSON
PUBLIC DEFENDER
SEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

SUSAN A. FAGAN
ASSISTANT PUBLIC DEFENDER
Florida Bar Number 0845566
112 Orange Avenue, Suite A
Daytona Beach, Florida 32114
Phone: 904/252-3367

ATTORNEY FOR RESPONDENT

JURISDICTIONAL BRIEF OF RESPONDENT

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Petitioner asserts in its jurisdictional brief that the District Court's decision in this case is in conflict with this Court's decision in Massey v. State, 609 So.2d 598 (Fla. 1992). The respondent disagrees and further submits that the District Court's decision does not conflict with this Court's decision in Ashley v. State, 614 So.2d 486 (Fla. 1993). Accordingly, the respondent respectfully requests that this Court not take jurisdiction of this case.

Finally, the respondent submits that although the District Court cites to Thompson v. State, 638 So.2d 116 (Fla. 4th DCA 1994) in finding that the respondent was provided inadequate notice of habitualization by the trial court prior to accepting his plea, this issue is moot in the instant case due to the respondent having already been sentenced on violating his community control and receiving a guidelines sentence.

ARGUMENT

THE DISTRICT COURT'S DECISION IS NOT IN EXPRESS AND DIRECT CONFLICT WITH A DECISION OF THIS COURT.

Petitioner asserts in its jurisdictional brief that the District Court's decision in this case is in conflict with this Court's decision in Massey v. State, 609 So.2d 598 (Fla. 1992). The respondent disagrees, and further submits that the District Court's decision does not conflict with this Court's decision in Ashley v. State, 614 So.2d 486 (Fla. 1993). The respondent accordingly disagrees with the State that this Court should take jurisdiction of this case to resolve the conflict alleged by Petitioner.

As to <u>Massey</u>, the State argues that the respondent had actual notice he <u>could</u> be habitualized, and that accordingly, any error in failing to notify him of habitualization <u>would</u> be considered in his case as harmless. The District Court's holding on that issue was as follows:

Although the form provision in this case is somewhat expanded from a similar provision in the plea agreement that we rejected in Thompson v. State, 638 So.2d 116 (Fa. 5th DCA 1994), it still does not comply with what we considered to be the Ashley mandate: that the defendant be made aware prior to pleading that his habitualization will be sought. The only notice given in this new version of the plea agreement is that "a hearing may hereafter be set" to determine

¹ The <u>Ashley</u>, <u>Thompson</u> and <u>Massey</u> opinions are attached to this brief as Appendix I.

if the defendant qualifies as a habitual offender. As we stated in Thompson, the statute itself informs him of this possibility. What the supreme court required in Ashley, and what we required in Thompson, was that the defendant be advised, prior to plea, that someone (the State or the judge) will subject him to habitual This does not mean consideration. that the defendant must be advised that he will be habitualized. only requires that the State advise the defendant prior to plea that he will be considered for habitualization. This requirement can easily be accomplished (though it may cut down on the number of pleas) by placing in the negotiated plea form a provision that states: "We will request that the court conduct a hearing to determine whether you should be sentenced as a habitual offender to an enhanced term as outlined below." This informs the defendant not that he might be considered for habitual treatment but that he will be so It will take this or considered. some similar notice, we think, to satisfy the requirements of Ashley. (footnote omitted)

Santoro v. State, 19 Fla. L. Weekly D2302 (Fla. 5th DCA October 28, 1994). (Appendix II) The respondent submits that the District Court ruled correctly on the notice issue, and that there is no conflict between the decision in Massey and the decision in this case. Nor does the instant decision conflict with this Court's decision in Ashley.

In Ashley, this Court noted that:

the relevant portion of the habitual offender statute states unequivocally that before a defendant may enter a plea or be sentenced he or she must be given written notice of intent to habitualize:

Written notice shall be served on the defendant and his attorney a sufficient time prior to the entry of a plea or prior to the imposition of sentence so as to allow the preparation of a submission on behalf of the defendant.

Section 775.084(3)(b), Fla.Stat. (1987).

614 So.2d at 489-90. This court in <u>Ashley</u> vacated the habitual offender sentence imposed in that case because:

[t]he record fails to show that at the time [his] plea was accepted Ashley had any personal understanding whatsoever that he would be habitualized or what habitualization entailed.

614 So.2d at 491.

Finally, on October 10, 1994, the respondent was sentenced to a three (3) year prison term under the sentencing guidelines for violating his community control in this same case. (See Appendix III) Therefore, because the District Court's opinion in the instant case does not specifically state, as the District Court did in Thompson, supra, which is currently pending review in this Court, that the trial court may resentence the respondant as a habitual felony offender if he is allowed the opportunity to withdraw his plea, and because the respondent has already been sentenced under the guidelines for violating his community control in the instant case, the issues raised in Petitioner's jurisdictional brief are moot. Jurisdiction should be denied by this Honorable Court.

CONCLUSION

For the reasons expressed herein, Respondent respectfully requests that this Honorable Court decline to accept discretionary jurisdiction in this cause.